
 

 

 

 

                                                                      4900 EARHART ROAD • LOVELAND, CO 80538   

  

MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY OCTOBER 19, 2023 

3:30PM – 5:00PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW COMMISSIONER 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

CONSENT AGENDA  

1. SEPTEMBER 21 MEETING MINUTES – P. 2 

2. SEPTEMBER FINANCIAL STATEMENT – P. 6 

3. SEPTEMBER DIRECTOR’S REPORT – P. 8 

• REMOTE TOWER PROJECT UPDATE FROM DAVE ULANE, CDOT AERONAUTICS 

DIRECTOR 

4. LEASE EXTENSION REQUEST 5235 STEARMAN – P. 34 

5. DIBBLE CONTRACT CHANGE RUNWAY 15-33 WIDENING – P.37 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

AIRPORT DIRECTOR’S REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 

REGULAR AGENDA 

6. 5-YEAR AIRPORT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ACIP) DRAFT REVIEW– P. 56 

7. PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SUBCOMMITTEE (PDSC) CHARTER UPDATE – P. 77 

8. BUSINESS FROM MEMBERS 

 

PULLED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

ADJOURN 

 

Meeting Planning Calendar
November 16

•Remote Tower Project Update

•2024 Rates & Fees Adoption

December 21

•Draft Land Use/Development Review 
Plan

•Legal: Commission Roles and 
Responsibilities Training

•Election of Officers for 2024

•Meeting Schedule for 2024

January 18

•2023-2024 Strategic Plan Update



        4900 EARHART ROAD • LOVELAND, CO 80538 

MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY OCTOBER 19, 2023 

3:30PM – 5:00PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW COMMISSIONER 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

CONSENT AGENDA  

1. SEPTEMBER 21 MEETING MINUTES – P. 2

2. SEPTEMBER FINANCIAL STATEMENT – P. 6

3. SEPTEMBER DIRECTOR’S REPORT – P. 8

4. LEASE EXTENSION REQUEST 5235 STEARMAN – P. 29

5. DIBBLE CONTRACT CHANGE RUNWAY 15-33 WIDENING – P.32

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

AIRPORT DIRECTOR’S REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 

REGULAR AGENDA 

6. 5-YEAR AIRPORT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ACIP) DRAFT REVIEW– P. 51

7. PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SUBCOMMITTEE (PDSC) CHARTER UPDATE – P. 72

8. BUSINESS FROM MEMBERS

PULLED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

ADJOURN 

Meeting Planning Calendar
November 16

•Remote Tower Project Update

•2024 Rates & Fees Adoption

December 21

•Draft Land Use/Development Review
Plan

•Legal: Commission Roles and 
Responsibilities Training

•Election of Officers for 2024

•Meeting Schedule for 2024

January 18

•2023-2024 Strategic Plan Update

1



1 

Meeting Minutes for September 21, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER Chair Overcash called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m. 

ROLL CALL Chair Overcash, Commissioners Adams, Arndt, Stooksbury, and 

Williams were present. Commissioners DiMartino and Burgener 

were absent. 

Commissioner Adams moved to switch the order of agenda items so that item #9 would be 

presented before item #8. The motion, seconded by Commissioner Stooksbury, carried 

with all Commissioners present voting in favor thereof. 

PUBLIC COMMENT Rick Turley, Hangar C tenant, requested more clarification on the 

runway 6-24 closure and process for landing during high 

crosswinds or other conditions as needed. More information 

regarding the estimated cost, timeline, and process for 

development of Site C was also requested with the Staff Report. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Commissioner Adams moved to approve Consent Agenda. The motion, seconded by 

Commissioner Williams, carried with all Commissioners present voting in favor thereof. 

Pulled Items: None 

Consent Follow up: None 

Public Comments: None 

MONTHLY REPORT Staff is preparing the RFP for repairs to the C hangars. 

• City of Loveland engineers reviewed the RFP to include

specific requirements in the scope of work.

• The bid package for C hangar maintenance will be

released in the coming week with construction expected

to begin in November.

The request to re-open runway 6-24 is still under review by the 

FAA. 

• The Safety Risk Panel is still reviewing site-line concerns

along with the NOTAM that has been issued for the

runway.

• Air Traffic Control must follow the process for landing on

runway 6-24 at the pilot’s discretion as determined by the

FAA.

Terminal construction continues on-track with the drilling of piers 

for the foundation in September. 

2



2 

REGULAR AGENDA 

5. Airport Commission

Secretary Appointment 

Kate Morgan, Airport Executive Assistant, presented this item in 

accordance with the staff report. 

Commissioner Williams moved to appoint Kate Morgan as the Commission Secretary. The 

motion, seconded by Commissioner Adams, carried with all Commissioners present 

voting in favor thereof. 

6. Airport Commission

Vice Chair Appointment 

Kate Morgan, Airport Executive Assistant, presented this item in 

accordance with the staff report. 

Commissioner Williams nominated Commissioner Arndt to serve as the Vice Chair. The 

motion, seconded by Commissioner Stooksbury, carried with all Commissioners present 

voting in favor thereof. 

7. Fort Collins-Loveland

Water District Easement 

Aaron Ehle, Airport Planning and Development Specialist, 

presented this item in accordance with the staff report.  

The Fort Collins-Loveland Water District (FCLWD) began 

collaborating with the Airport in 2021 for a 24-inch waterline 

easement along a portion of the Airport boundary. It was 

determined that the benefit of the water line and service 

connection points would outweigh the value of the 6.1 acres 

encumbered by the easement with a net value of $740,374 for the 

Airport. The proposal has been vetted by staff of Fort Collins and 

Loveland, and the PDSC voted unanimously to recommend 

approval to the Airport Commission and both City Councils. If 

passed, construction would be expected to begin in February or 

March. Some operational impacts of the construction are 

expected to last approximately three days and will be coordinated 

by Airport staff with schools and businesses. 

Diane Jones, member of the public, suggested attaching the 

estimated value of the improvements as an exhibit in the 

agreement. Chair Overcash requested that the valuation 

information be included. 

Commissioner Adams moved to recommend approval of this easement. The motion, 

seconded by Commissioner Ardnt, carried with all Commissioners present voting in favor 

thereof. 

9. Airport Financial

Overview 

Aaron Ehle, Airport Planning and Development Specialist, 

presented this item for discussion: 

Data from 2021 revenues, expenses, and other economic impacts 

was evaluated to provide a broad overview of costs and benefits 

with the current Airport ownership model. Commissioner 

Stooksbury suggested including the property tax benefit to 

3



 
 

3 

 

Larimer County and noted that Colorado does not tax aviation 

sales, so there is not much sales tax revenue from on-Airport 

businesses. 

8. 2024 Budget 

Presentation and 

Recommendations 

Francis Robbins, Airport Operations and Maintenance Manager, 

presented this item in accordance with the staff report. 

The total proposed budget for 2024 is approximately $27 million, 

which includes an operating budget of approximately $3 million 

and a capital budget of approximately $24 million. 

Commissioner Stooksbury moved to recommend approval of the 2024 budget. The 

motion, seconded by Commissioner Williams, carried with all Commissioners present 

voting in favor thereof. 

10. Business from 

Members 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT Commissioner Adams adjourned the meeting at 5:06 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Commission Chair, Don Overcash 

4



5



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 2 

MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Francis Robbins, Operations & Maintenance Manager 

 

TITLE 

Monthly Financial Statement 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Staff recommend acceptance of the preliminary financial statement as presented. 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Neutral 
 

SUMMARY 

Financial highlights for the month of September include: 

• The monthly statement indicates just over $7.68 million within the net position 

available for use. This amount includes $6 million as approved by the Airport 

Commission and City Councils to be applied toward the terminal project. Within 

this amount $2 million is from the CARES Act operations and maintenance grant, 

which has been fully drawn down and input in the account, $2 million for the local 

matching contribution, and $2 million in City Contributions. 

o An accurate net position available for use is $1.68 million which is planned 

for future federal funding grant matches, specifically $1 million for the $14 

million runway widening project in 2025, and the remainder maintaining 

the operational financial reserve.  
 

ATTACHMENT 

Preliminary monthly financial statement for September. 

 

6



Y-T-D 2023 Actual Y-T-D 2022 Actual Y-T-D 2023 Budget 2023 Total Budget

% of Total 

Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

Hangar Rental 159,703 179,332 191,250 255,000 63%

FBO Rent 70,629 70,629 70,603 94,134 75%

Gas and Oil Commissions 194,927 253,767 142,497 190,000 103%
Aviation Fuel Tax Reimbursement 161,446 145,392 124,875 166,500 97%

State Aircraft Fuel Tax 110,859 113,832 101,250 135,000 82%

County Aircraft Fuel Tax 50,587 31,560 23,625 31,500 161%

Land Lease 572,606 399,077 375,003 500,000 115%

Land Lease PD Training Ctr 206,086 285,114 293,706 391,600 53%

Terminal Lease and Landing Fees 28,803 8,999 9,306 12,400 232%

Terminal Lease and Landing Fees 4,287 4,190 4,284 5,700 75%

Concessions 24,516 4,809 5,022 6,700 366%

Parking 0 0 0 0 0%

Miscellaneous 42,475 84,803 108,675 144,900 29%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,436,674 1,427,112 1,315,915 1,754,534 82%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal Services 609,722                539,793.28                 817,155.00 1,089,540 56%

Supplies 66,050                  77,495.20                   96,062.00 124,900 53%

Purchased Services 431,119                345,667.46              1,120,267.03 1,496,860 29%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,106,891 962,956 2,033,484 2,711,300 41%

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) 329,783 464,156 (717,569) (956,766)

NONOPERATING 

REVENUES (EXPENSES)
City Contributions 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 2,000,000 100%

Passenger Facility Charge 0 0 0 0  

Interest Income 51,086 18,040 38,250 51,000 100%

Capital Expenditures (1,649,005) (831,319) (23,168,754) (30,891,667) 5%

TOTAL NONOPERATING 

REVENUES (EXPENSES) 402,081 (813,279) (21,130,504) (28,840,667)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 731,864 (349,122) (21,848,073) (29,797,433)

Capital Contributions 1,155,730 637,740 23,436,000 31,248,000 4%

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,887,595 288,618 1,587,927 1,450,567

NET POSITION, Beginning 21,237,480 19,864,422 

NET POSITION, Ending 23,125,075 20,153,040 

Investment in Capital Assets 15,440,026 15,805,175 
Net Position Available for use 7,685,049 4,347,865 

Airport Statement of Revenues and Expenses

From 01/01/2023 - 9/30/2023

PRELIMINARY

7



Date: 
To: 

October 21, 2023 
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 

From:  David Ruppel, Airport Director 
Re:  August Airport Report 

Report Highlights 
• Airport Hangar proposals for the C‐Hangars are due October 26th and 5 contractors attended

the mandatory pre‐bid meeting last Monday.  A and B Demolition bids are due November 16th.
• The FAA confirmed that Searidge Technologies is leaving the Remote Tower project in a

meeting with the FAA on October 16th and discussed the path forward.
• Hensel Phelps is on track with grade beam installation and expects to complete slab

installation in November and begin steel framing in early December.
• Operations updates.

Airport Activity Dashboard 

• Flight operations for the month of September averaged 339 per day, and the twelve‐month
rolling average is 306.

• Wholesale fuel ordered by the jetCenter FBO was 131,840 gallons for the month of September,
a decrease of 28% compared to the previous September at 182,894 gallons, likely attributable
to high fuel prices this year.

o Total year to date fuel for jetCenter is down 15% year over year.
o Total fuel flowage through September is 980,525 gal compared to 1,155,182 gal in 2022.

• Business jet activity for September compared to the same month in 2022 was down 10%, going
from 421 to 379 operations.

324

375

298

223
270 279

296
320

293
317 304

334339

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Se
p

Oc
t

No
v

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

Airport Operations 8am ‐ 6pm 
Daily Avg/Month

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

Se
p

Oc
t

No
v

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

FNL Business Jet Activity 13‐
Months

8



 
Airport Owned T-Hangars Update 

 
A mandatory pre‐bid meeting was held on October 9th with 5 contractors in attendance, 
McCauley Constructors, Happel & Associates, Iron Fly Steel Fabricators, Growling Bear, and 
PCL.  All were able to see the inside of several hangars to help them understand the 
complexities of the project.  We have sent them additional pictures and have invited them to 
bid on the A and B Hangar Demolition as well.  Proposals for the C‐Hangar Repair are due on 
October 26th, pre‐proposal meeting for the A and B Hangar Demolition will be on October 
27th, and proposals for the demolition work are due on November 16th. 

 
Remote Tower 

 
The Remote Tower Project Team met with FAA project leadership on October 16th to discuss the project 
and expects to be able to provide additional information at the Commission meeting.     

 
 

Terminal 
 
Foundation work continues with installation of Grade beams to support the slab installation in 
November. Grade beams, concrete placement and formwork removal are complete on about half 
of the required installations. Under slab utility trenching is underway.  Construction is on 
schedule to begin steel installation in early December. 
 
 

 

0
20000
40000
60000
80000

100000
120000
140000
160000
180000

Jan Feb Ma Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Fuel YoY Comparison

2020 2021 2022 2023

9



10/11/2023 Under slab utility trenching.   10/11/2023 Grade beam and pier‐cap concrete 
 placement. (Grade Beam 3) 

10/12/2023 Form work removal 
(Grade Beam 3) 

Mobile Tower Line-of-Sight 

We are expecting a response from the FAA on the final determination by the ATO on whether FNL will 
need to continue to NOTAM Runway 6/24 closed during Tower operation hours.  In the interim, FNL 

10



emailed local pilots the script recommended by  ATC in Joint Order 7110.65AA, Section 3‐3‐2 for landing 
on a closed runway.  The FNL Pilot’s Association sent out a similar guide to its membership.  The Pilot 
Communication Guide for landing on Runway 6‐24 during Tower hours is attached to this report.  As noted 
previously, a pilot who is unable to land on Runway 15‐33 due to crosswind conditions, can always declare 
an emergency and request Runway 6‐24. 

FNL is still working with the FAA to get approval for a STARS repeater display in the Mobile ATCT. 
Installation of a STARS display in a Mobile ATCT is considered a non‐standard configuration and must be 
approved by ATO.  The controllers and Air Traffic are in favor of this proposal since it will support better 
situational awareness and a safer operating environment at FNL.  

Governance Study 

The internal support team is working with both Cities to determine the best format for evaluating 
the Governance options presented by DSR LLC.  Once the two Cities agree on the best structure 
for evaluation of the options, DSR LLC and the City legal staffs will facilitate those discussions to 
determine the best path forward for Airport Governance. 

Operations/Maintenance Manager Updates 

Snow and Ice Control Plan and Winter Operation Stakeholder meeting. 

Since the last commission meeting, FNL staff have conducted our Annual training on the Snow and Ice Control plan for 
the upcoming winter season. We also completed the 2023 Winter Operations stakeholder meeting to included outside 
entities in the safety and planning for this expected hazard. Winter operations have inherent risks to aircraft and snow 
operators which we mitigate through training, ongoing planning and coordination, and timely condition reporting. The 
maintenance team are in progress configuring all equipment for winter operations. This is part of our commitment to 
operational readiness. The addition of the new rotary broom from Sun Valley and the additional loader and box plow 
purchased through the CDOT Aeronautics equipment Surplus program, will help with snow and ice clearing operations 
this winter season. 

Pavements 

Taxi lane Northrop, located east of the Taxiway Bravo, experienced a weather and weak 
pavement related pavement failure in September. Airport staff immediately implemented a 
temporary patch and have contracted with Goltz Asphalt using and existing contract with the 
City of Loveland for on call asphalt services. This work is expected to be completed before the 
end of asphalt paving season.  

The terminal parking lot has seen strong wear as expected with the LandLine operation relocated to a 
new portion of the parking lot. Staff have used recycled asphalt to mitigate trip and pothole hazards in 
the drive lane and passenger walkway of the terminal facility. The airport has contracted with Goltz 
Asphalt to replace the failing asphalt in the bus lane with compacted asphalt millings that can be 
repaired more easily than the existing asphalt.  The overflow lot signage improvements have been 
deployed to direct passengers to the additional parking displaced by terminal construction. This will 
help to improve the passenger experience during the holiday season. 

Airport Scheduled Events 
• Numerous Charter Flights for Local Football Teams
• October 6‐7 Colorado State University’s “Colorado Drone Airshow 2023”

Attachments 
1. Loveland Fire and Rescue Authority ARFF monthly report
2. Runway 6‐24 Pilot Communications
3. CDOT Press Release / News articles.

11



a. Our Transition to Flourine‐Free Foam
b. Flourine‐Free Firefighting Foam
c. Virtual Ramp System at Kansas City Int’l

Happy September! 
Hi All!  Sending this a few days early because of this week’s flights… 

Airport:

• Get connected to Denver flights through Landline!  You can search your favorite travel site (ie. Priceline, Expedia)
and enter Fort Collins (FNL) as your departure airport.

• Kids ride free and parking at NoCo Regional is free!   There are over 8 trips a day to Denver International!
• https://landline.com/

• Airport Commission meeting will be held on September 21st, 3:30-5:00pm at the Fire Station conference room 
• Please see the www.flynoco.com website for all airport commission updates involving the terminal construction!

ARFF: 

• So far in 2023, we've had

o 6 Alert incidents
o 9 Diversion flights from DIA due to weather
o 15 Scheduled air-carrier flights
o And football season starts next month with all football flights for both CSU and UNC teams and

visiting teams

***Scheduled Air-Carrier Flights for September: 

****Squad 46 will be assigned to scheduled air-carrier flights unless otherwise assigned by the LFRA Shift BC. 

Day  Date  Airline  Arrival Time  Departure 

Time 
Aircraft  Team/Notes 

Wed Aug. 30 Allegiant 1130 1330 A320/19 UNC Football OUT 

Thurs Aug. 31 United 1940 2042 B737-800 Texas Tech FB IN 

Fri  Sep. 1  Allegiant  0121  0211  A320/19  UNC Football IN 

Fri  Sep. 1  Alaska  1515  1555  B737-800  WSU Football IN, Ferry OUT 

Sat  Sep. 2  Alaska  2030  2230  B737-800  Ferry IN, WSU Football OUT 

Mon  Sep. 11  Charter Training  0930  B737  40 passengers IN/ Ferry out 

Fri  Sep. 15  Charter Training  0830  0900-0930  B737  Ferry IN/ 40 passengers OUT 

Fri  Sep. 15  Allegiant  1129  1330  A320/19  UNC Football OUT 

Sat  Sep. 16  Allegiant  2224  2314  A320/19  UNC Football IN 
12

https://landline.com/
http://www.flynoco.com/


Fri  Sep. 22  Sun Country  TBD  1140  B737-800  CSU Football OUT 

Fri  Sep. 22  Allegiant  1229  1430  A320/19  UNC Football OUT 

Fri  Sep. 22  Allegiant  1521  1611  A320/19  Appalachian State Football IN, Ferry 

OUT 
Sat  Sep. 23  Allegiant  2249  2339  A320/19  UNC Football IN 

Sun  Sep. 24  Sun Country  TBD (Early 

AM) 
TBD  B737-800  CSU Football IN 

Fri  Sep. 29  Allegiant  1429  RON  A320/19  Utah Tech Football IN, RON 

Fri  Sep. 29  Sun Country  1800  1845  B737-800  Casino Charter OUT 

Sat  Sep. 30  Allegiant  RON  2230  A320/19  Utah Tech Football OUT, JC Crew 

here TBD 
Color Codes 

 
  

ARFF Standby   

Casino/Other  RON = Remain 

Overnight 
  

UNC Football 
 

  

CSU Football 
 

  

CSU/UNC/ Wyo Opp. 
 

  
          
  
  
Have a great month!!! 
  
Gina Gonzales 
ARFF Lead Engineer 
Loveland Fire Rescue Authority 
LFRA Fire Station 4, Northern Colorado Regional Airport 

 
970-568-6026 – business cell – for messages as well 
gina.gonzales@lfra.org - email 
www.lfra.org   

 
  
www.flynoco.com 
  
**Like the flight attendant says, “First put the oxygen mask on yourself… only then can you help 
someone else with theirs” 
  
  
 
 

13

mailto:gina.gonzales@lfra.org
http://www.lfra.org/
http://www.flynoco.com/
http://www.flynoco.com/


1

David Ruppel

From: Northern Colorado Regional Airport <airport@cityofloveland.org>

Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 1:32 PM

To: David Ruppel

Subject: [External] Landing on Runway 6-24

 

 

FNL Pilots,  
 

Runway 6-24 has been closed as the result of an Air Traffic Control Line of 
Sight issue. Airport staff inspect the runway as part of our airfield inspection to 
ensure it is safe for use. There is nothing physically wrong with Runway 6-24 
and the loss of visibility for controllers only effects the Tower’s ability to provide 
a landing clearance, not suitability of the surface for landing.  In person 
outreach has been in progress to notify pilots about the issue. We are now 
putting the information in writing to try and broaden the outreach. There are 3 
ways you can still use Runway 6-24 with the closed runway NOTAM in effect.  
 

1-     Use before or after tower hours.  
The “Closed except for taxi” NOTAM is only effective during tower hours so the 
first option for using Runway 6-24 is to do so outside of tower hours. Use 
before or after tower hours is at your discretion and avoiding airspace conflicts.  
2-     Declare an emergency.  
In a declared emergency, Part 91.3 (b) states “In an in-flight emergency 
requiring immediate action, the pilot in command may deviate from any rule of 
this part to the extent required to meet that emergency.” A significant weather 
event with an inability to divert is an example of an appropriate use of this 
regulation. This will result in simple report with the air traffic controllers after 
landing.  
3-     Request the runway for landing until ATC says “Landing will be at 
your own risk.”  
To avoid pilots declaring an emergency unnecessarily, ATC and Airport staff 
jointly determined it would be useful to leverage the Air Traffic Controller 
process for landing on a closed runway outlined in Joint Order 7110.65AA 
Section 3-3-2. The link will show you the specific regulation, but in short you 
must ask 3 times to land on the runway. ATC will deny the request 2 times and 

may remind you of the NOTAM. Only if you persist with a 3
rd
 request to land 

using a direct statement, like “Request to land Runway 24,” the controller is 
able to say “Landing will be at your own risk” if it does not create an airspace 
conflict. You will now be able to land on Runway 6-24 and responsibility to see 

14



2

that the runway is clear of aircraft and vehicles is up to the pilot. For polite 
pilots who always comply with ATC instructions this may feel scary or wrong. 
Just know that the FNL Air Traffic Manager came to the airport with this as a 
solution so pilots can utilize the runway. We want you to land safely and this is 
one tool to get you there.      

 

Regards, 
 

Airport Management 
Northern Colorado Regional Airport 
www.flynoco.com 

970-962-2853 

 

  

  

4900 Earhart Road 

Loveland, CO 80538 

 

See what's happening on our social sites 

           

    
 

  

Northern Colorado Regional Airport | 4900 Earhart Rd, Loveland, CO 80538  

Unsubscribe david.ruppel@cityofloveland.org  

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice 

Sent by airport@cityofloveland.org powered by 
 

 
Try email marketing for free today!  

 

 

 

15



 

 
“Taking Care To Get You There” 

News From: 
 

                                    
 
  

www.codot.gov  
www.facebook.com/Colorado Aeronautics 

  @COAeroDiv 

 
                                         
October 18, 2023 

Contacts: David Ulane, Aeronautics Division Director 

 303.512.5254 | David.Ulane@state.co.us 
 

Dave Ruppel, Interim Airport Manager 
Northern CO Regional Airport 

970.962.2850 | david.ruppel@cityofloveland.org 
 

 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Remote Tower Project Paused 
Controlled Air Space to Continue   

 

LOVELAND – Since 2015, the Colorado Department of Transportation’s (CDOT) Division of Aeronautics (State), 
the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL), and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) have been 
collaborating on an innovative effort to bring remote air traffic control tower technology to FNL and Colorado.  
This technology uses video cameras and other sensing technologies to emulate the operational safety and 
efficiency benefits of a traditional air traffic control tower but with additional flexibility and capabilities at a 
much lower capital and operational cost than a traditional air traffic control tower. 
 
In 2018, the FAA selected Searidge Technologies of Ottawa, Canada to be the remote tower technology provider 
at FNL, and in March 2020, a mobile air traffic control tower was installed in advance of a structured testing and 
evaluation program to eventually certify and operate a permanent remote tower at FNL.  Unfortunately, a 
number of circumstances have occurred that have impacted the program, including the COVID-19 pandemic and 
related multi-year FAA travel restrictions, as well as continually changing FAA standards for remote tower 
certification. As a result, Searidge Technologies has advised the FAA that they will terminate work on the FNL 
remote tower program. 
 
As this transition occurs over the next several weeks, the state, FNL, and the FAA will collaborate on a new path 
forward that preserves existing air traffic control services at FNL for the foreseeable future.  During this time, 
future options will be evaluated for continued development of the remote tower facility at FNL as well as 
potential options for a traditional air traffic control tower.  Significant interest exists from other remote tower 
technology providers to continue development at FNL, and the state and FNL will be working closely with the 
FAA to explore this option as the preferred alternative. 
 
“While we are disappointed to see Searidge leave the remote tower program, we remain optimistic that the 
cost-effective benefits of remote tower technology will have tremendous value to Colorado’s future aviation 
system, and we intend to vigorously support future development of the technology” said CDOT’s Aeronautics 
Director David Ulane.  
 

16

http://www.codot.gov/
https://www.facebook.com/ColoradoAeronautics/
https://twitter.com/COAeroDiv
mailto:David.Ulane@state.co.us
mailto:david.ruppel@cityofloveland.org


 

 
“Taking Care To Get You There” 

“FNL has a well-deserved reputation for innovation, safety, and development and the Remote Tower is a great 
example of that focus. The Remote Tower has already provided an exceptional, innovative pathway to meet the 
operational demands of our growing airport in a safe, cost effective, and timely way,” said David Ruppel, 
Northern Colorado Regional Airport interim director. “While this news is unfortunate, we are confident that with 
the FAA’s ongoing support, CDOT’s commitment to this project and our airport, as well as interest from other 
highly qualified vendors, we will be able to carry this effort forward.” 
 

 

 
Under the Direction of the Colorado Aeronautical Board, the Colorado Department of Transportation’s Division of 
Aeronautics supports Colorado's multi-modal transportation system by advancing a safe, efficient, and effective 
statewide air and space system through collaboration, investment and advocacy. In partnership with the Federal 
Aviation Administration, 76 public-use airports and a diverse group of aviation system users, the Division also works 
to promote aviation safety and education through the efficient administration of the Colorado Aviation Fund.  For 
more information, check us out on YouTube, like us on Facebook and follow us on Twitter. 

 

FNL is a commercially certified regional airport supporting over 110,000 annual flight operations, with over 200 
hangars and over 300 based aircraft.  It is one of 14 commercial airports in Colorado and has not only supported 
numerous commercial airlines in the past but with the addition of a new Terminal, wider runways, and the future 
certification of the Remote Tower system will continue to be the transportation hub for Northern Colorado.  FNL 
supports over 1,072 jobs, $51,914,000 in annual payroll, and $160,874,000 in Business revenue. 
 

 
#  #  #  

17

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLYszme4xVADAW9NqkRHECQmob-PZW0NyO
https://www.facebook.com/ColoradoAeronautics
https://twitter.com/COAeroDiv


10/17/23, 9:22 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2
18



10/17/23, 9:22 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2
19



10/17/23, 9:15 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2
20



10/17/23, 9:15 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2
21



10/17/23, 9:17 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2
22



10/17/23, 9:17 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2
23



10/17/23, 9:16 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2
24



10/17/23, 9:16 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2
25



10/17/23, 9:30 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2
26



10/17/23, 9:30 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2
27



10/17/23, 9:30 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2
28



10/17/23, 9:30 AM about:blank

about:blank 2/2
29



10/17/23, 9:30 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/1
30



31



32



33



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 4 

MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Kate Morgan, Airport Executive Assistant 

 

TITLE 

Lease Option Extension Request, 5235 Stearman 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Approve the lease extension request. 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

None, the lease rates will remain unchanged 
 

SUMMARY 

This is an administrative item. The Airport’s standard land lease terms are an initial 

twenty-five-year lease with three five-year extension options for a total of forty years. 

The initial lease will end on October 29, 1998. This is the first of three five-year 

extensions. The Airport was notified (as required by the lease agreement) that the 

lessee desires to exercise their option to extend the land lease agreement for their 

second five-year extension period. This extension request requires the approval of the 

Airport Commission as authorized by the Intergovernmental Agreement between the 

Cities of Fort Collins and Loveland. Staff have reviewed the request and found the 

associated account to be in good standing. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 

Lease Option Request: Jeff Moser, 5235 Stearman 

34



From: Jeff Moser

To: Katherine Morgan

Subject: [External] Re: 5235 Stearman Street Lease

Date: Monday, October 9, 2023 12:06:18 PM

Yes, I would like to do a 5 year extension to my lease for 5235 Stearman St.  I am working to
get my certificate of insurance updated from my local insurance agent.

Jeff Moser
5440 Peak View Ct.
Windsor CO 80550

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 9, 2023, at 10:32 AM, Katherine Morgan
<Katherine.Morgan@cityofloveland.org> wrote:


Hi Jeff,

 

To follow up on your invoice questions last week, here is the breakdown of your

account for 5235 Stearman Street:

Previous monthly lease rate: $42.52

New monthly rate escalated in September: $50.76

 

Since you paid $510.26 in January to cover all of 2023 at the previous rate, I credited

$170.08 back to your account for September, October, November, and December.

Those four months at the new rate will total $203.04. So, the amount owed to cover

the remainder of the year is $32.96.

 

If your wish to continue paying for the year in advance, the annual lease fee will be

$609.12 until the next escalation in September of 2028.

 

That being said, your current lease agreement for 5235 Stearman is set to expire on

October 29, 2023. If you would like to take the option of extending the terms of this

lease agreement for another 5 years, then please notify me in writing as soon as

possible.

 

Thank you for bringing this issue to our attention, and please do not hesitate to reach

out if you have any additional questions.

 

Thank you,

 

Kate Morgan 

35

mailto:jsmoser@comcast.net
mailto:Katherine.Morgan@cityofloveland.org


Airport Executive Assistant 
Katherine.Morgan@cityofloveland.org 

O: 970.962.2851 

C: 970.593.2826

<image001.png>

4900 Earhart Road Loveland, CO 80538
Website | Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | YouTube Channel

 

<Moser_ASMP and Lease 5-01-10.pdf>

36

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.flynoco.com/__;!!HxSnvVm2WdNPEuU!ufIhTCETlljZx_29BLP5ikN7cRkaU3XkVMEFr_sLOczhiKTTUOBvwEmO2_VpQjJP5LnNVmdTUA9gcoW1ZcmivDSgSOy-fA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.facebook.com/fortloveair__;!!HxSnvVm2WdNPEuU!ufIhTCETlljZx_29BLP5ikN7cRkaU3XkVMEFr_sLOczhiKTTUOBvwEmO2_VpQjJP5LnNVmdTUA9gcoW1ZcmivDQ8ZZyWjw$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://twitter.com/flynoco__;!!HxSnvVm2WdNPEuU!ufIhTCETlljZx_29BLP5ikN7cRkaU3XkVMEFr_sLOczhiKTTUOBvwEmO2_VpQjJP5LnNVmdTUA9gcoW1ZcmivDTn8LrX3w$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.instagram.com/noco_airport__;!!HxSnvVm2WdNPEuU!ufIhTCETlljZx_29BLP5ikN7cRkaU3XkVMEFr_sLOczhiKTTUOBvwEmO2_VpQjJP5LnNVmdTUA9gcoW1ZcmivDRLNpdu3w$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.youtube.com/c/Fortloveair__;!!HxSnvVm2WdNPEuU!ufIhTCETlljZx_29BLP5ikN7cRkaU3XkVMEFr_sLOczhiKTTUOBvwEmO2_VpQjJP5LnNVmdTUA9gcoW1ZcmivDRt8hX-jw$


 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 5 

MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Francis Robbins, Airport Operations & Maintenance Manager 

              

 

TITLE 

Contract Amendment with Dibble Engineering for Change Order 1 Design and Bid 

Services for the Runway 15-33 Widening Project 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Make a motion to recommend approval of a contract amendment with Dibble 

Engineering for Change Order 1 Design and Bid Services for the Runway 15-33 

Widening Project to the Loveland City Council 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Negative, the Change order amount is $83,774.01.  

$83,774.01 will come from Airport reserves. The $75,396.60 will be reimbursable under 

the construction grant funding. 

 

SUMMARY 

This is an administrative item requesting the approval of change order and contract 

amendment to the contract with Dibble Engineering for professional services totaling 

$83,774.01. The Airport currently has an on-call contract with Dibble Engineering as its 

consultant on record through 2024. The contract was awarded after a thorough 

qualification-based selection process that included staff from both Cities serving on the 

selection committee. 

 

Dibble was contracted with July of 2023 to design and bid services for the Runway 15-

33 Widening project. This important project will enhance safety and help to attract 

commercial air service. Construction of the runway improvements is scheduled for 

2025. The project is also included in the adopted Airport Master Plan and Capital 

Improvement Plan. In October, the FAA determined the Airport Geospatial Information 

System in the Airport Data Information Portal required an update to survey and imagery 

data before design as well as post construction. This action was initially included as 

post construction per FAA determination at that time. 

 

37



              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission Page 2 of 2 

 

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) will provide the Airport with a grant funding 

amount of $75,396.60 during the construction phase of this project. This grant requires 

a local funding match of $4,188.70 and state match of $4,188.70 to pay for the 

additional costs for construction administration and management. These funds have 

been budgeted for and appropriated through the two City Councils within the adopted 

2023 Airport Budget.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Runway 15-33 Widening Project Change Order 1 

38



Contract Change Order

Change Order No.: _________________________________  Purchase Order No.: _______________________ 

Contractor: _______________________________________  Project Name:____________________________ 

Architect/Engineer:_________________________________ Project No.:______________________________

DESCRIPTION 

Description of Change: 

Attachments: 

Original Contract Cost: ____________________________________ 

Total Approved Change Orders: ____________________________________

Total This Change Order:                 _______________________________

Adjusted Contract Cost w/This Change Order:  _____________________________________

(assuming all changed orders are approved) % of increase to contract _______% 

Change in Contract Time: _____________________ Adjusted Date for Completion: _____________________

Submitted By: __________________________________ Date: ________________ 

Reviewed By: __________________________________ Date: ________________ 

Approved By: __________________________________ Date: ________________ 

 

This change order is accepted and the contract is amended to conform thereto, this __________________day of 

_____________________________________. 

City of Loveland Accepted: Contractor Accepted:
Recommended by Architect/

Engineer (if required):

By: _________________________

Title: _______________________

By: ________________________

Title: _______________________

By: ________________________

Title: _______________________
39

1

Dibble

APFAA43Dibble

$499,375.00

$3,163,630.32

$83,774.01

$3,746,779.33

650.29%

None None

Francis Robbins 10/17/2023

Change of scope identified by FAA as required. Perform the AGIS/ADIP submittal of Aeronautical 
Obstruction Survey data and coordination with the FAA and Airport for the relocation of the existing 
Runway 15-33 PAPI equipment. 

Dibble Proposal Change order request No.1

23-1102

Runway 15-33 Widening



p 303.872.5756 2696 South Colorado Blvd, Suite 330 d ib b leco r p .co m  

f 303.353.4068 Denver, CO 80222 

 

 

October 16, 2023 (rev. 1) 
 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport 

4900  Earhart Road 

Loveland, CO 80538 
 

Attention: Mr. David Ruppel 

Interim Airport Director 
 

RE: ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL 

  City Project Number: TBD 

  FAA AIP No. 3-08-0023-043-2023 

  Change Order Request No. 1 

Run w ay 15-3 3  W ide n in g –  Ae ro n au tical Obs tructio n  Surve y/ AGIS an d FAA 

Re im burs able  Agre e m e n t Co o rdin atio n   
  

We appreciate the opportunity to provide additional design phase services for the Runw ay  15-33 W idening  
project at the Northern CO Regional Airport (FNL).  This proposal has been prepared in accordance with the 
communication and coordination with the FAA and FNL over the past few weeks regarding the additional 
work that needs to be performed for the AGIS/ ADIP submittal of Aeronautical Obstruction Survey data and 
coordination with the FAA and Airport for the relocation of the existing Runway 15-33 PAPI equipment.  

Dibble, as the prime consultant, is proposing to complete the Scope of Work as included in this proposal as 
follows: 

A. COR No . 1 Se rvice s : 

1. Dibble (Civil)………………………………………………………………………… 

2. CR Engineers (Electrical - DBE)..……………………………………………. 

3. NV5 Geospatial (Aeronautical Survey)……………………….……………. 

Subto tal……………… 

 

Transmitted herewith is our proposed Scope of Work, Fee Summary, Derivation of Fee Proposal, Estimated 

Manhours matrix, Estimated Direct Costs worksheet, and full subconsultant proposals for your review.  
 

We are very grateful for the opportunity to work with FNL on this exciting important project.  If you need 

additional information or have questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

J ared Bass, P.E.        

Vice President - Sr. Project Manager     

$11,404.28

$5,950 .73

$66,419.00

$ 8 3 ,774 .0 1

40



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   R u n w a y  15-3 3  W id en in g

Dib b le                                                               COR  No . 1 - Sco p e  o f W o r k  (Aer o n a u t ica l Su r v ey )                                                          Page 1 of 3          

 
 

SCOPE OF W ORK 

Northern CO Regional Airport  

Runw ay 1 5 - 3 3  W idening 

COR No. 1  -  Aeronaut ical Obstruct ion Survey/ AGI S and  

FAA Reim bursable Agreem ent  Coordinat ion 

FAA AI P No. 3 - 0 8 - 0 0 2 3 - 0 4 3 - 2 0 2 3  

October 1 2 , 2 0 2 3  
In tro ductio n  
 
Dibble (Engineer) has been requested by the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL or Airport) and FAA to 
provide additional minor design phase services that were outside the original scope of work for the Runw ay  15-33 

W idening project.  This additional effort includes the following items: 
 

• Perform a full aeronautical survey meeting the requirements identified in the new AGIS Survey  Project 

Planning Guide.  This document has been included to this scope of work for reference. 

• Review the existing Obstacle Authoritative Source (OAS) obstacle data, (327 existing objects in OAS 
within 18B surfaces), and potentially removing obstacles as a part of this project. Any obstacle removals 
will be completed by NV5 Geospatial using the FAA’s Runway Airspace Management tool.  This item was 
not included in the original scope of work. 

• Additional design and coordination related to the relocation of the existing airport-owned PAPI’s to meet 
the standard separation distance from new edge of pavement.  This additional effort includes further 
evaluation of the existing airport circuitry that was unforeseen prior to the project start. 

• Coordinate with the FAA and FNL on the Reimbursable Agreement for the FAA ATO to provide design for 
the FAA owned PAPI’s.  This additional coordination for the FAA Reimbursable Agreement and 
coordination with their design was not anticipated in the original scope of work. 

 
During the 2023 FAA/ CDOT/ FNL CIP meeting held in October 2023, the FAA stated that the project should plan 
for construction in 2025.  The Bid Phase can occur in the 4 th quarter of 2024.  The following identifies the 
anticipated Aeronautical Obstruction Survey schedule (pending the timing of the proposal approvals): 

• Imagery Acquisition - 10 / 23 –  10 / 27  

• Field Survey - 11/ 1 - 11/ 30  

• Compilation - 1/ 15 - 2/ 23 

• Edit - 2/ 26 - 3/ 15 

• Ortho production - 3/ 1 - 3/ 15 

• Obstruction analysis (Existing ends) - 3/ 15 - 4/ 15 

• ADIP upload - 4/ 15 (pending AGIS/ NGS/ FAA approvals) 
 
The following subconsultants are anticipated on this additional effort (their respective proposals are attached): 

• Electrical Engineering Design: CR Engineers (DBE) 

• Aeronautical Obstruction Survey: NV5 Geospatial 
 

Design Phase Services ( Lum p Sum )  

 

1 )  General Project  Managem ent  and Pre- Design Tasks: 
 
a) Project Management and Administration: provide and direct all project management and coordination 

of the design team and provide coordination between design team members, the Airport, and other 
interested stakeholders, including the FAA.  Administration tasks such as file coordination and 
miscellaneous project communications throughout the course of the design phase and project printing 
and packaging at each submittal level will also be included under this task.  

 

41



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   R u n w a y  15-3 3  W id en in g

Dib b le                                                               COR  No . 1 - Sco p e  o f W o r k  (Aer o n a u t ica l Su r v ey )                                                          Page 2  of 3          

b) Project Meetings:  The following are anticipated meetings throughout the design phase: 
i. FAA Reimbursable Meeting: this meeting will be held at the beginning of the project task to 

coordinate the FAA’s scope of work and the coordination items needed between the FAA and 
FNL/ Dibble. 

ii. FAA ATO Design Coordination Meetings:  these meetings will be held with FNL, FAA, and the 
Dibble Team members to coordinate the FAA and Dibble designs (i.e. electrical infrastructure, 
etc.).  

 

2 )  Design Phase: 
 

a) Aeronautical Obstruction Survey: this item includes the effort to coordinate the Aeronautical Obstruction 
Survey with FNL.  The Dibble team will coordinate with NV5 Geospatial to utilize recent ground survey 
data that can supplement the complete survey needed.  Dibble will also coordinate with NV5 Geospatial 
and provide escorts for the survey.  It is estimated that a minimum of four days of escort will be needed.  
Dibble will further coordinate with NV5 Geospatial to assure the survey data is prepared and submitted 
to the FAA ADIP system in accordance with: 

• FAA AC 150/ 5300-16B General Guidance and Specifications for Aeronautical Surveys: 

Establishm ent of Geodetic Control and Subm ission to the National Geodetic Survey  

• FAA AC 150/ 5300-17C, Change 1 Standards for Using Rem ote Sensing Technologies in 

Airport Surveys 

• FAA AC 150/ 5300-18B, Change 1 General Guidance and Specifications for Subm ission of 

Aeronautical Surveys to NGS: Field Data Collection and Geographic Inform ation System  

(GIS) Standards 
 
See also full proposal from NV5 Geospatial for their effort. 
 

b) Additional PAPI Relocation Analysis: during the initial site visit it was determined that the existing 
electrical infrastructure as-built files are not fully complete or accurate.  The design team (Dibble and 
CR) will need to further evaluate the existing infrastructure to accommodate the need for relocating the 
existing PAPI’s.  This additional effort was not anticipated in the original scope of work.  
 
The following key Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Advisory Circulars (AC) will be used for 
design: 

• FAA AC No. 150/ 5300-13B –  Airport Design   

• FAA AC No. 150 / 5300-18B –  General Guidance and Specifications for Subm ission of 

Aeronautical Surveys to NGS: Field Data Collection and Geographic Inform ation System  

(GIS) Standards 

• FAA AC No. 150 / 5340-30J  –  Design and Installation Details for Airport Visual Aids 

• FAA AC No. 150 / 5345-28H –  Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) System s 

• FAA AC No. 150/ 5345-53D –  Airport Lighting Equipm ent Certification Program  

• FAA AC No. 150/ 5370-2G –  Operational Safety  on Airports During Construction  

• FAA Engineering Brief No. 95 –  Additional Siting and Survey  Considerations for 
Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) and Other Visual Glide Slope Indicators (VGSI) 

• FAA Order 6850 .2B –  Visual Guidance Lighting System s 
 
 See also the full proposal from CR Engineers for their effort. 
 

c) FAA-Owned PAPI Relocation Coordination: coordinate the Dibble design plans with the FAA ATO PAPI 
design.  This effort will include the infrastructure necessary for the FAA to install their new equipment 
on. 

 

3 )  Miscellaneous and Assum pt ions: 

a) The following number of additional trips are anticipated by the Project Manager during the Design Phase 
to cover all the on-site meetings identified in this change order scope of work: 

1. Design Phase –  1 Trip (one staff member –  4 days): 

i. Aeronautical Obstruction Survey (escorting) 

42



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   R u n w a y  15-3 3  W id en in g

Dib b le                                                               COR  No . 1 - Sco p e  o f W o r k  (Aer o n a u t ica l Su r v ey )                                                          Page 3  of 3          

 

4 )  Exclusions To This Scope of W ork: 

a) Construction Phase Services. 

b) Landscape, Irrigation, and Environmental Design Services. 

c) Structural Engineering, Mechanical, or Architectural Design Services. 

d) Revisions to the most current offsite watershed hydrology model(s). 

e) FEMA Letters of Map Revision. 

f) Permit-Ready Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP) (Contractor’s Responsibility). 

g) The following design elements: 

i. Blast Pad rehabilitation and expansion to meet FAA standards. 

ii. Runway shoulder design to meet FAA standards. 

iii. Full connector taxiway rehabilitation or re-design to meet current FAA geometric standards. 

h) Running the Safety Risk Management Meeting (SRM) or developing the SRM report. 

43



DAB AB Only Previous < Imagery 
3‐Yrs Old New Imagery

YES (1) (2) (1)

NO ‐‐‐ (2) (2)

NO YES ‐‐‐ YES ‐‐‐ (2) (2) IFP Dev & Changes to DDs

YES ** POSSIBLE (1) (2) (1)

NO ** YES ‐‐‐ (2) (2)

YES (1) (2) (1)

NO ‐‐‐ (2) (2)

YES # POSSIBLE ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐
NO YES ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐

Runway Decommissioning ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐

# REQUIRED

YES ‐‐‐

Runway Rehab/Reconditioning (Mill & Overlay)
(No Expected Changes to Safety Critical Data) ‐‐‐ # YES

(1) (2)Add New or Alter Existing Displaced (Landing) Thld 
(No "Planned" RWY End Feature Changes)

‐‐‐

‐‐‐ # SITUATION 
SPECIFIC

YES ‐‐‐ YES ‐ Full AAA OIS

Physical RWY End Change/Relocation 
(RWY Shift, Extension, Reduction, Relocation, etc.) YES

‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ YES YES ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐

PROJECT NOTE(S): None

New Runway ‐‐‐ YES ‐‐‐

YES ‐‐‐ YES ‐ Full AAA OIS YES ‐ RWY + Construction Area(s)VFR to IFR Runway (With RWY Construction) ‐‐‐ YES ‐‐‐

Required As‐Built Phase Imagery

(For Verification of SCD)

AGIS REQUIRED PROJECT TYPE Design Phase Imagery Type
PRIMARY PROJECT PURPOSE Has Existing

AAA < 3‐Yrs Old?
New AAA
Required?

VFR to IFR Runway (No RWY Construction)

YES ‐ RWY + Construction Area(s)

YES ‐ Full AAA OIS

PLEASE NOTE: 
  ‐ This guide does not cover all situations and should be considered a "General Reference Only" for airport construction scoping/planning projects that require an AGIS Survey compliant submittal. 
  ‐ Always verify AGIS Survey project requirements using the most current version of AC's 150/5300‐16, ‐17, and‐18.
  ‐ Review the 2022 AGIS Survey Policy Guidance Letter (PGL) for required AGIS project types and Safety Critical Data tolerances and required AGIS Survey project types.
  ‐ The Office of Airports is the only source for direction, clarification, or advice on airport survey data requirements for construction projects. 

Reason/Direction

AGIS SURVEY PROJECT PLANNING GUIDE

RUNWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (SAFETY CRITICAL DATA SUBMITTAL)

Include Any New or Reconstructed Taxiways In the Project Scope/AGIS Survey Submittal (Submit the Entire Length of the Taxiway. For AMDB, Consider Including/Updating Attached Taxiways and Markings)

PROJECT NOTE(S): 
# If the As‐Built survey finds that Safety Critical Data features (i.e., RWY Ends, RWY CL, Airport Control Points, etc.) were moved by amounts exceeding the 2022 AGIS Survey PGL requirements, a new AGIS Design/As‐Built project with an AC‐18 AAA survey may be 
required (See project type "Physical Runway End Change/Relocation " above). Imagery is required for verification. Quality Control is key to ensuring this process does not modify any current published Safety Critical RWY feature data.

PROJECT NOTE(S): The decommissioning of a runway does not require an AGIS Survey or RAM obstacle mitigations. For Federally Obligated airports, this can be coordinated using the ALP Update process. Non‐Obligated airports can use the ADIP Digital 7480‐1 
submitted through ADIP.

IFP Dev (VGS Surface)

IFP Dev & Req New OIS Sfcs

Grant Component

IFP Dev & New OIS Sfcs

IFP Dev & New OIS Sfcs

IFP Dev & New OIS Sfcs

IFP Dev & New OIS Sfcs

IFP Dev & Changes to DDs

PROJECT NOTE(S): The term "Alter " includes addition, relocation and/or removal of a feature. 
# To ensure Safety of Flight, and to ensure that all publised IAPs have the best minima available, a new/updated AC‐18 AAA may be required for this project type. The age of a previously completed AAA (if any) and size of the airport should be key determining 
factors in the decision to require/not require a new AAA survey.

PROJECT NOTE(S): 
** If more pavement is added/removed on one side of the runway centerline than the other (see OFFSET RWY Widening/Narrowing project type below), this will result in the movement of the Physical RWY End points and RWY CL. If this move is more than the 
2022 AGIS Survey PGL requirements, this project will require a new AC‐18 AAA to be performed in a DAB AGIS Survey project. Also, a new AAA will be required if the runway is other than a VFR only utility RWY (i.e., circling is NA's to that runway on IAP charts) 
and does not have a current AAA in AGIS Survey.

PROJECT NOTE(S): None

PROJECT NOTE(S): None

PROJECT NOTE(S): None

PROJECT NOTE(S): None

LINEAR Runway Widening/Narrowing

(No "Planned" Changes to RWY End/CL)

OFFSET Runway Widening/Narrowing

(Changes Expected to RWY End/CL Locations) YES ‐‐‐ YES

YES

(1)YES YES

44



DAB AB Only Previous < Imagery 
3‐Yrs Old New Imagery

Required As‐Built Phase Imagery

(For Verification of SCD)

AGIS REQUIRED PROJECT TYPE Design Phase Imagery Type
PRIMARY PROJECT PURPOSE Has Existing

AAA < 3‐Yrs Old?
New AAA
Required?

Reason/Direction

YES ‐‐‐ POSSIBLE (1) (2) (1)

NO YES ‐‐‐ (2) (2)

ALP/Master Plan Update ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ YES NO ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ YES ‐ Airport Boundary ‐‐‐

Stand‐Alone Visual NAVAID Installation/Relocation ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ NO ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ ‐‐‐ Submit FAA VGSI Form 

Circling Authorized Runways ‐ AAA Surveys
(Includes Circling Sector Restricted Runways) 

YES ‐ Required for Verification‐‐‐Taxiway Construction
(Includes new, redesign, repair, or removal)

YES NO ‐‐‐‐‐‐

IMAGERY FOOTNOTES: 
   (1) If the project will utilize previous collected AGIS Survey project imagery in the Design Phase (i.e., AAA imagery that is less than 3‐years old from the Date of Imagery Acquisition), new AC‐17 compliant AAA area imagery is required to be gathered/delivered 
in the As‐Built phase. Ensure project plans for the collection/submittal of AC‐17 compliant imagery for both AGIS Survey project Phases is described thoroughly in the SOW and the Imagery Plan documents. 
   (2) If full AC‐17 compliant AAA imagery is gathered/submitted in the AGIS Survey project Design Phase, an "Imagery Update " flight is required in the As‐Built Phase that encompasses the entire construction area and all project associated runways.

PROJECT NOTE(S):  
https://www.faa.gov/air_traffic/flight_info/aeronav/aero_data/7900.2D‐VGLS/ 

STAND‐ALONE TAXIWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (SAFETY CRITICAL DATA SUBMITTAL)

SCD

Minimum ‐ NVG‐AAA

ALP/MASTER PLAN UPDATE PROJECT
PROJECT NOTE(S): None

YES

Ver. 1.0 ‐ 6/28/2023

PROJECT NOTE(S): Submit As‐Built Data Only to this project . Do not include any changed, or planned changes, to existing airport features with the survey data submittal. AC‐17 compliant imagery is required to verify all safety critical data submitted to this 
project.

PROJECT NOTE(S): A circling approach is an IFR maneuver completed in VM (Visual Meteorological) Conditions. If "Circling NA to Rwys ##‐## " is listed in the remarks section of current Instrument Flight Procedure Charts, an AC‐18 AAA survey is not required for 
that runway. If circling is authorized to a runway (including runways with circling restricted areas ‐ i.e., "Circling NA W of Rwys ##‐## "), at a minimum, an AC‐18 NVG‐AAA is required in order to identify obstacles within the circling approach areas and to 
establish the lowest possible Circling Minimum Descent Altitudes (MDA) for each Aircraft Category authorized to execute the IAP/circling maneuver.  

CIRCLING AUTHORIZED RUNWAY ‐ OBSTACLE SURVEY REQUIREMENTS

STAND‐ALONE VISUAL NAVAID PROJECTS

SUPPLEMENTAL REFERENCE GUIDE INFORMATION

ACRONYMS:

AAA ‐ Airport Airspace Analysis,  AB ‐ As‐Built Project Type (i.e., Safety Critical Data Collection, Not Including Design Data ), AC ‐ Advisory Circular, AC‐17 ‐ AC 150/5300‐17 (Current Version), AC‐18 ‐ AC 150/5300‐18 (Current Version), ADIP ‐ Airport Data and 
Information Portal, CL ‐ (Runway) Centerline, AGIS ‐ Airports GIS (see also ADIP), ALP ‐ Airport Layout Plan, AMDB ‐ Airport Mapping Database, DAB ‐ Design/As‐Built Project Type (i.e., Safety Critical Data Collection, Including Design Data ), DD ‐ Declared 
Distances, DEV ‐ Development, IAP ‐ Instrument Approach Procedure, IFP ‐ Instrument Flight Procedure, NAVAID ‐ Navigational Aid, NVG‐AAA ‐ AC‐18 Non‐Vertically Guided Airport Airspace Analysis, OIS ‐ Obstruction Identification Surface (see AC‐18), PGL ‐ 
Program Guidance Letter, RAM ‐ Runway Airspace Mitigation (see also ADIP), REQ ‐ Required, RWY ‐ Runway, SCD ‐ Safety Critical Data (see AC 150/5300‐18B, Para 4.1.3), SFC/SFCS ‐ Surface/Surfaces, THLD ‐ Threshold, SOW ‐ Statement of Work, VGLS ‐ Visual 
Guidance Lighting System, VGS ‐ Vertical Guidance Surface (TERPS Visual Evaluation Surface ‐ Previously GQS)

‐‐‐

45



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: Runway 15‐33 Widening Task Number: 6
COR No. 1 ‐ Aeronautical Survey Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: 3‐08‐0023‐043‐2023

Date: 10/16/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

Dibble Subs

A. COR No. 1 Services:
Fee Type

1 Dibble (Civil)…………………………………………………………………………… $11,404.28 Lump Sum $11,404.28
2 CR Engineers (Electrical ‐ DBE)…............................................... $5,950.73 Lump Sum $5,950.73
3 NV5 Geospatial (Aeronautical Survey)…................................... $66,419.00 Lump Sum $66,419.00

TOTAL Dibble Subconsultants
Total…………………………………………………………….………………………… $83,774.01 $11,404.28 $72,369.73

7.1%

Summary

DBE % Participation

46



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: Runway 15‐33 Widening Task Number: 6
COR No. 1 ‐ Aeronautical Survey Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: 3‐08‐0023‐043‐2023

Date: CDOT Number: TBD

1 Principal $295.00

2 Senior Project Manager $225.01

3 Project Manager $205.02

4 Senior Engineer $205.02

5 QA/QC Manager $205.02

6 Project Engineer $172.01

7 Senior Designer $146.99

8 Admin Assistant $85.01

COR No. 1 DIRECT COSTS

Item Cost
1 Submittal Printing (Dibble)……………………………………………………… $0.00
2 Travel (Dibble)………………………………………………………………………… $0.00
3 Meals (Dibble)………………………………………………………………………… $0.00

Sub‐Total for Direct Costs..................................................... $0.00

COR No. 1 SUBCONSULTANTS

Firm Cost
1 CR Engineers (Electrical ‐ DBE)…................................................. $5,950.73
2 NV5 Geospatial (Aeronautical Survey)…..................................... $66,419.00

Sub‐Total for Subconsultants: ............................................. $72,369.73

COR No. 1 TOTAL FEE

TOTAL FEE........................................................................ $83,774.01

Type of
Compensation
Direct Cost
Direct Cost
Direct Cost

Type of
Compensation
Lump Sum
Lump Sum

16 $2,351.84

0 $0.00

Totals: 60 $11,404.28

0 $0.00

0 $0.00

16 $2,752.16

0 $0.00

28 $6,300.28

0 $0.00

10/16/2023

COR No. 1 SERVICES SUMMARY

Classification Total
Hours

Billing
Rates

Total
Costs

47



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering Project Number: TBD

Project: Runway 15‐33 Widening Task Number: 6
COR No. 1 ‐ Aeronautical Survey Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: 3‐08‐0023‐043‐2023

Date: 10/16/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

SENIOR 
PROJECT PROJECT SENIOR  QA/QC PROJECT SENIOR ADMIN 

TASK PRINCIPAL MANAGER MANAGER ENGINEER MANAGER ENGINEER DESIGNER ASSISTANT

1   General Project Management and Pre‐Design Tasks

1a Project Management & Administration 12 12

1b Project Meetings 4 4 8

2   Design Phase

2a Aeronautical Obstruction Survey 8 8 12 28

2b Additional PAPI Relocation Analysis 2 4 6

2c FAA‐Owned PAPI Relocation Coordination 2 4 6

TOTAL HOURS BY CLASSIFICATION 0 28 0 0 0 16 16 0 60

COR No. 1 ‐ ESTIMATED   MANHOURS

TOTAL HOURS
BY TASK

48



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering Project Number: TBD

Project: Runway 15‐33 Widening Task Number: 6
COR No. 1 ‐ Aeronautical Survey Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: 3‐08‐0023‐043‐2023

Date: 10/16/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

1. PRINTING ( 30%, 60%, 90%  and 100% 'Bid Set' Submittals)

a. 0 Submittals of 0 sheets = 0 Sheets @ $2.50 /sheet $0

  (2 Copies Full‐Size Bond Plans)

b. 0 Submittals 0 sheets = 0 Sheets @ $0.30 /sheet $0

  (4 Copies Scaled 1/2‐Size Plans)

c. 0 Plotting 0 sheets = 0 Sheets @ $1.50 /sheet $0

d. 0 Submittals for Spec Book @ 700 Sheets @ $0.10 /sheet $0
(2 copies @ 650 pages each) (double‐sided)

e. 0 Submittals for Eng. Report @ 300 Sheets @ $0.60 /sheet $0
(2 copies @ 300 pages each) (single‐sided)

2. Lodging

a. 0 Nights 1 Staff $113.00 /Day $0
(2023 Federal Per Diem)

3. Travel

a. 0 Trips 130 miles $0.655 /mile $0
(2023 Federal Per Diem)

4. Meals

a. 0 Days 1 Staff $69.00 /Day $0
(2023 Federal Per Diem)

$0DESIGN AND BID PHASE TOTAL

COR No. 1 DIRECT COSTS 

49



 

 

   

   16719 E. Palisades Boulevard                                                                                                                                  Telephone: 480-816-5541 

   Suite 202                                                                                                                                                                                           Fax: 480-816-5540 

   Fountain Hills, AZ 85268                                                                                                                                                      Web: www.creng.com 

   

 

October 9, 2023 

Dibble Engineering 
2696 South Colorado Blvd., Suite 330 
Denver, Colorado 80222 
 
Attn.: Mr. Jared Bass, P.E. 
 
Re:  Northern Colorado Regional Airport RWY-15-33 Widening: PAPI Relocation 

Proposal for Additional Electrical Design Services 
CRE Project No. 22042 

Dear Mr. Bass, 

We thank you for choosing our firm to work as your engineer for the above project. We are pleased to 
present our proposal for this project in the listed attachments below. 

Scope of Work: The scope of work is to provide electrical design services to relocate the PAPI box 
closet to the Runway 15 to the furthest position and push the PAPI PCU further out to meet FAA AC 
requirements and accommodate the Runway 15-33 widening.  

Fee Proposal: See attached Exhibit B. 

This proposal will be valid for the next ninety (90) days, and we reserve the right to renegotiate it if it has 
not been accepted within that period. Should conditions of the work change so as to materially affect the 
level of effort or the time required, then equitable adjustments to fee and schedule will be made. 
Consultant will notify Client when a changed condition becomes apparent. Failure of Client to provide a 
timely and equitable adjustment is cause for termination by Consultant. 

We will bill you for services rendered to date. Payment will be due within thirty (30) days of billing date. 

Please do not hesitate to call if you have any questions. 

Sincerely yours, 

CR ENGINEERS, INC. 

 

Catherine Alcorn, P.E. 
President 

 

50



CR Engineers, Inc.

1.0 Design Fee Proposal Worksheet
Project Name: Northern CO Regional Airport - Runway 15-33 Widening - PAPI Relocation 

Date: 10/09/23
CRE Proposal No.: 22042

Task Senior Senior Senior Senior Project Total

Description Quantity

Electrical 

Engineer Designer

CADD 

Designer  Inspector Administrator Hours
1.1 Meetings & Site Visits

1.1.3 FAA NAVAID Coordination/Meeting 1.0 1.0

1.3 Contract Documents

1.3.1 Electrical Drawing(s) 2.0 10.0 10.0 2.0 24.0

1.3.2 Specifications 2.0 1.0 3.0

1.3.3 Engineers Report 1.0 1.0

1.3.4 Cost Estimate 3.0 3.0

1.3.5 30% Submittal 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0

1.3.6 60% Submittal 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0

1.3.6 90% Submittal 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0

1.3.7 100% Submittal 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0

1.3.8 Client Coordination 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0

1.0 Totals 8.0 18.0 15.0 5.0 1.0 47.0

Overhead Rate 150 %

Profit Margin 10 %

Labor Rates Per Hour: $74.50 $43.75 $35.40 $44.80 $25.40 

Direct Labor: $596.00 $787.50 $531.00 $224.00 $25.40

Overhead: $894.00 $1,181.25 $796.50 $336.00 $38.10

Overhead + Direct Lab: $1,490.00 $1,968.75 $1,327.50 $560.00 $63.50

(OH + Direct) x Profit: $149.00 $196.88 $132.75 $56.00 $6.35

1.0 Total Fees $1,639.00 $2,165.63 $1,460.25 $616.00 $69.85 $5,950.73

22042 Northern CO Regional Airport RWY 15-22 Widening- CO Design Fees .xls Page 1 of 1

51



 

 

October 10, 2023 
 
Mr. Jared Bass, P.E. 
Dibble Engineering 
2696 South Colorado Blvd, Suite 585 
Denver, CO 80222 

Project: 043628 | Aeronautical Obstruction Survey – Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) – Runway 
15/33 Design  

Dear Mr. Bass, 

This summary of work describes our understanding of the scope of work and services required to complete 
an aeronautical obstruction survey at the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) located in Fort Collins, 
CO. The project will be done in compliance with Airports GIS Program policies and will include an airport 
airspace analysis for vertically guided operations for future Runway 15/33 in support of a runway widening. 
The Advisory Circulars identified below detail the data collection requirements and accuracies for the project 
and the verification process by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the National Geodetic Survey 
(NGS). 

 AC 150/5300-16B “General Guidance and Specifications for Aeronautical Surveys: Establishment of 
Geodetic Control and Submission to the National Geodetic Survey” 

 AC 150/5300-17C, Change 1 “Standards for Using Remote Sensing Technologies in Airport Surveys”  
 AC 150/5300-18B, Change 1 “General Guidance and Specifications for Submission of Aeronautical 

Surveys to NGS: Field Data Collection and Geographic Information System (GIS) Standards” 

Summary of Work 

The purpose of this project is to accomplish an FAA Airport Airspace Analysis Survey for all surfaces 
defined in FAA Advisory Circular 150/5300 - 18B: Section 2.7.1.1 Runways with Vertical Guidance in 
support of a runway widening. 

In addition, and per FAA Policy Guidance issued 9/22/22, we will be reviewing the existing Obstacle 
Authoritative Source (OAS) obstacle data (327 existing objects in OAS within 18B surfaces) and potentially 
removing obstacles as a part of this project. Any obstacle removals will be completed by NV5 Geospatial 
using the FAA’s Runway Airspace Management tool. 

For this project, we will acquire new vertical stereo digital imagery at a physical image scale of 1”=2,500’ of 
the obstruction surface areas and 1”=1,250’ of the runway centerline.  The aerial imagery will cover all of the 
VG Airspace Analysis surfaces using an UltraCam Falcon prime (UCFp) camera during leaf-on conditions.   

From the 1”=2,500’ imagery, we will produce the following: 
 Limited landmark feature planimetric mapping 
 Color digital orthophotos with a 1.0’ pixel resolution 
 Identification and mapping of obstruction obstacles for all of the VG surfaces 

From the 1”=1,250’ imagery, we will produce the following:  
 Identification and mapping of obstruction obstacles for the VGRPS, VGPCS, & VGPS surfaces 

 
The online SOW will be prepared during project initiation with input from the airport, Dibble Engineering, and 
NV5 Geospatial.  NV5 Geospatial will be responsible for preparation and submittal of the Survey and Quality 
Control Plan, Imagery Acquisition Plan, Imagery Acquisition Report, Final Project Report and all associated 
data files as required for submission to the FAA Airport Data and Information Portal (ADIP). 

52



 

N6216 Resource Drive, Sheboygan Falls, WI 53085 

Quality Standards 

The project has been designed to conform to the National Map Accuracy Standards for limited landmark 
planimetric feature collection and twelve-inch orthophoto production.  In addition, we ensure that the 
photogrammetric mapping will meet all FAA and NGS standards. We will exercise reasonable care and will 
conform to the standards of practice ordinarily used by the photogrammetric profession. 

Project Area 

The project area encompasses all of Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) inclusive of the obstruction 
surfaces as defined in AC 150/5300-18B. 

Control Surveying 

The aerial photography will be completed with ABGPS control which will be used for the base control for the 
geo-referencing of the aerial imagery.  NV5 Geospatial will process the ABGPS data using COR stations 
and reference it to the project control datums: 

Horizontal: North American Datum of 1983/2011 (NAD 83(2011)), in the CO State Plane Coordinate 
System, North zone in US survey feet. 

Vertical: North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88)  

NV5 Geospatial will complete all of the remaining on-site ground control surveys, including: 

 Geodetic control validation of the existing airport PACS and SACS stations or establish temporary 
airport control according to the guidelines established in AC 150/5300-16B 

 Establishing all necessary photo-identifiable ground control and FAA mandated check-points required 
to validate the ABGPS and IMU control.  

 Collection of all the airport runway end positions 
 Collection of vertical profiles for all runways 
 Collection of the position, elevation, and where required the appropriate navigational aid perpendicular 

point of all electronic and visual navigational aids (NAVAIDS) located on the airport and associated with 
any current instrument approach servicing the airport 

 All other tasks, not specifically listed above, as outlined in FAA AC-18B, Table 2-1 “Survey 
Requirements Matrix for Instrument Procedure Development.” 

Orthophoto Mapping 

We will use the control solution and imagery to generate a Digital Elevation Model (DEM) of the VG 
surfaces. For this project, the imagery will be processed into color digital orthophotos using the 
aforementioned DEM to rectify the images.  Orthophotos for the entire project area will be developed with a 
1.0’ pixel resolution.  Orthos will be delivered in a GeoTIFF file format. 

18B Obstruction Surveys 

The Obstructions Surfaces to be uploaded to ADIP will satisfy the requirements of AC 150/5300-18B: 

 2.7.1.1 Analysis of future Runway 15/33 with Vertically Guided Operations 
(Surfaces include the VGRPS, VGPCS, VGAS, VGPS, VGATS, VGHS and VGCS) 
 

The specific types and quantities of obstructions for each surface are outlined and clearly defined for the 
particular surface in each circular section.  Any obstructions that meet the requirement of the circular, but 
are of a nature that elevations at the highest point of the obstruction are virtually impossible to read through 

53



 

N6216 Resource Drive, Sheboygan Falls, WI 53085 

photogrammetric methods (cell tower, electrical tower, etc.), will be identified and relayed to the surveyor to 
initiate field surveyed elevations for the obstruction. 

The obstruction delivery will include the limited landmark planimetric feature collection.   

The final data will be uploaded to ADIP in ESRI Shapefile format. 

Production Schedule 

We will work with you to finalize a mutually agreeable schedule for the project after FAA Control Plan 
approvals.  We will make a reasonable effort to maintain the agreed-upon schedule.  However, should the 
project be interrupted by technical problems beyond our control, including control deficiencies or map file re-
deliveries rescheduling may become necessary. 

Deliverables 

NV5 Geospatial will submit all data collected and associated required deliverable in the formats specified in 
the appropriate advisory circulars to the FAA Office of Airports, Airports Surveying-GIS Program.  All data 
submissions to the FAA will be through the program’s web site at https://adip.faa.gov/agis/portal.   

The AC 150/5300-17C project data deliveries that will not be submitted through the web site will be 
delivered on external hard drives or DVDs. The 18B deliverables that will be uploaded to ADIP include: 

 
 Imagery Plan and Survey and Quality Control Plan 
 Image Delivery (sent to FAA) 
 Color digital orthophotos (sent to FAA) 
 Digital limited landmark detail outside the airport 
 Obstruction survey data for future Runway 15/33 
 Photogrammetrically derived attributes in defined format 
 Surveyed ends and profile for each runway 
 NAVAID data  
 FGDC compliant metadata 
 Final Report 

 

We will deliver the following items to Dibble Engineering: 
 Color digital orthophotos with a 1.0’ pixel resolution in GeoTIFF (project area) 
 OAS obstacle data spreadsheet containing changes (XLS format) 

 
All digital files will be delivered on external hard drive, FTP or CD/DVD. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54



 

N6216 Resource Drive, Sheboygan Falls, WI 53085 

Cost and Payment Terms 

Compensation for the above services will be provided as a lump sum cost of U.S. $66,419.00. 

Client Responsibi l it ies  

The successful and timely completion of this project is dependent upon a number of elements and work 
tasks, some of which involve participation by Dibble Engineering. You will be responsible for designating a 
representative for the project who will have the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and 
make timely decisions with respect to the services provided by NV5 Geospatial. 

NV5 Geospatial  Representative 
 

Jill Mahoney, Project Manager and Marlin Zook, Technical Manager, will represent us during the 
performance of the services to be provided under this agreement.  Each has the authority to transmit and 
receive instructions and make decisions with respect to the services.  Each is authorized to commit the 
necessary resources towards completing the services described herein. 

 

We look forward to working with you and your staff to complete this project in a timely and cost effective 
manner. Should you have any questions, please call our office at 803-351-3136 or email me at the address 
shown below. 

Sincerely, 
NV5 Geospatial, Inc., 

 

 
David Grigg 
Aviation Program Director 
David.Grigg@NV5.com 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

55

mailto:David.Grigg@NV5.com


 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 6 

MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Aaron Ehle, Airport Planning & Development Specialist 

 

TITLE 

Proposed 5-Year Airport Capital Improvement Plan 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Adopt Resolution R-06-2022 approving the 2023-2027 Airport Capital Improvement 

Plan as presented 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

None – but will highly influence future budgets 

 

SUMMARY 

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a critical planning tool that is used to identify and 

prioritize the Airport’s projects for the next five (5) years. It is updated annually to keep 

current with project costs and the status of available resources. 

 

In 2020, the Airport Commission and the City Councils approved an updated Airport 

Master Plan, which included the recommended capital projects and a 20-year financial 

plan for implementation. 

 

The projects in this updated Capital Improvement Plan are primarily those that are listed 

in the 2020 Master Plan that are predominantly eligible for aviation related federal (FAA) 

and state funds. The CIP does not include all of the capital projects and equipment 

necessary for continued operations and maintenance of the Airport—particularly those 

that are not eligible for federal and state funding. This updated Capital Improvement 

Plan has been discussed with and affirmed by FAA and state officials in meetings held 

on October 10th. 

 

Due to the number of enplanements from Avelo Airlines’ operations in 2022, we will 

receive approximately $2 million of additional guaranteed FAA funding in 2024. 

 

While all of the projects on our updated CIP list are important to the vision and operation 

of the Airport, two are particularly significant to mention over the next two years. 

 

56



              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission Page 2 of 2 

 

Construction began on the new $22 million terminal facility in July and is anticipated to 

be complete in the fall of 2024. Due to funding constraints, some of the needed landside 

pavement improvements were removed from the scope of the project. Airport staff 

recently applied for a discretionary Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) grant of $3.75 

million to support these needs. If partially or fully awarded, the grant would be applied to 

parking lot reconstruction and expansion, additional electric vehicle charging stations, 

and entrance road improvements. 

 

The other large scale federally funded project is the Runway Widening Project. This is 

scheduled for construction in 2025 for a total cost of $14.9 million. This is an FAA 

supported project to satisfy related airfield design requirements for the Airport’s type of 

critical design aircraft—the Airbus A320 and Boeing 737 series aircraft. 

 

The attached “2024-2028 Proposed Airport Capital Improvement Plan” spreadsheet 

provides information about funding resources—both available and sought—for each 

project listed. 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to request adoption by the Airport Commission of 

this updated 2024-2028 Airport Capital Improvement Plan. Per the Intergovernmental 

Agreement, this annual update does not need to be approved by the City Councils. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

ACIP Presentation 

2024-2028 Proposed Airport Capital Improvement Plan 

Resolution R-09-2023 

57



Regularly Scheduled Meeting

October 19, 2023

58



AIRPORT CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT 

PLAN
FIVE-YEAR UPDATE

2024-2028

59



Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP)
2021-2025
• Updated capital plan derived from:

• Airport  Master Plan

• FAA safety standards 

• Projected capacity demands for future 
aeronaut ical use

• Exist ing condit ions of airport  assets 
including runways, tax iways, aprons, 
navigat ional aids, light ing, etc.

• Aircraft  demand

• Engineering cost est imates

• Current understanding of future FAA & 
CDOT funding 

• Regular meet ings with FAA Airport  District  
Off ice & CDOT Aeronaut ics Grant Managers

3
60



Pandemic Impacts to Grant Funding

• Airport  grant funding derived from federal and state 
sources
• Federal Aviat ion Administrat ion (NPIAS)

• Airport  and Airway Trust Fund

• Funded through aviat ion related excise taxes on passengers, cargo, and fuel

• Airport  Improvement Program (AIP) 

• Tradit ional airport  funding source and has been funded at a stat ic $3.35 billion level for 23 years

• Bipart isan Infrastructure Law (BIL)

• Provides $20 billion over 5 years to airports for high priority projects

• Colorado
• Department of Transportat ion Division of Aeronaut ics Aviat ion Grant Program

• Funded through aviat ion fuel tax  revenues and disbursement (2.9% sales tax  on fuel)

• Recent fuel pricing has signif icant ly driven the fuel tax  

4
61



FAA NPIAS

• National Plan of Integrated Airport  
Systems
• Released September 30, 2022

• Shares funding needs for federally eligible 
projects over next 5 years

• Approx imately 3,300 airports included in the 
plan

• Focus is safety & capacity planning

• Updated every other year

• Report shows $27,491,229  in est imated 
funding need for FNL

• Increase of $10 million from previous NPIAS

• Ranked 9 th in Colorado

• Updated Airport  Role: Regional to National
https://www.faa.gov/sites/faa.gov/files/npias-2023-2027-narrative.pdf 

5
62

https://www.faa.gov/sites/faa.gov/files/npias-2023-2027-narrative.pdf


NPIAS Federal Funding 
Development Estimate 2024-2028

6

State City Airport LocID
Owner-

ship

Svc Lvl

(FY23)

Hub

(FY23)

Role

(FY23)

Enplaned

(CY21)

Based Aircraft

(CY21)

Development

Estimate

2023-2027

CO Denver Denver International DEN PU P L 28,645,527 1 $1,011,007,241

CO Colorado Springs City of Colorado Springs Municipal COS PU P S 941,917 227 $120,785,546

CO Grand Junction Grand Junction Regional GJT PU P N 252,290 126 $88,560,620

CO Denver Centennial APA PU R National 496 747 $44,816,668

CO Durango Durango-La Plata County DRO PU P N 200,245 68 $44,815,268

CO Eagle Eagle County Regional EGE PU P N 201,752 89 $43,154,413

CO Montrose Montrose Regional MTJ PU P N 188,355 81 $28,484,708

CO Aspen Aspen-Pitkin County/Sardy Field ASE PU P N 248,781 95 $27,626,405

CO Fort Collins/Loveland Northern Colorado Regional FNL PU CS National 5,248 244 $27,491,229

CO Pueblo Pueblo Memorial PUB PU CS Regional 9,624 120 $26,031,580

CO Hayden Yampa Valley HDN PU P N 150,142 9 $18,756,112

CO Pagosa Springs Stevens Field PSO PU GA Local 2 37 $10,222,222

CO Greeley Greeley-Weld County GXY PU GA Regional 0 146 $9,695,693

CO Akron Colorado Plains Regional AKO PU GA Basic 0 7 $9,061,111

CO Gunnison Gunnison-Crested Butte Regional GUC PU P N 38,783 30 $8,688,889

CO Denver Rocky Mountain Metro BJC PU R National 670 471 $7,957,000

CO Denver Colorado Air and Space Port CFO PU R Regional 0 282 $7,730,410

63



Proposed 2024-2028 ACIP Highlights

• Aligned with recommended ACIP in Airport  Master Plan
• Updated cost f igures using f inancial analysis from Master Plan and est imates from 

Consultant Dibble Engineering 

• Total f ive- year capital investment -  $34.9 million
• $23.7 million federal eligible funding

• $15.9 million AIP

• $7.8 million of federal special funding (BIL) 

• $9.1 million local funding

• $2 million state funding

• Two major projects -  new terminal building and runway widening and rehabilitat ion
• Terminal Project 2022- 2024: $22 million ($25 million including 2021 Apron)

• Addit ional funding for roadway/ parking improvements being sought from BIL

• Runway Widening Project 2023- 2025: $14.9 million

• New high eff iciency LED light ing system

7
64



Airport Capital Improvement 
Plan Summary (2024-2028)

FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28
Total Five-Year 

Cost Estimate

Federal $6,256,000 $13,448,475 $2,045,050 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $23,749,525

State $139,721 $406,945 $938,612 $250,000 $250,000 $1,985,278

Local $739,721 $1,553,898 $638,613 $621,210 $5,571,000 $9,124,442

Total $7,144,442 $15,409,318 $3,622,275 $1,871,210 $6,821,000 $34,868,245

8
65



2024-2028 ACIP Detail

9

The ACIP 

spreadsheet 

is included 

separately as 

part of the 

meeting 

packet

66



2023

New Terminal Construction

• Cost: $20,373,136 

• Funding Sources: FAA CARES, 

Local

Runway 15-33 Widening Design

• Cost: $864,389

• Funding Sources: FAA BIL, State, 

Local

GA Taxilane Rehabilitation Design

• Cost: $100,000

• Funding Sources: Local

2023 ACIP Projects

10

1

3

2

67



2024

New Terminal Construction

• Cost: $1,766,666 

• Funding Sources: FAA BIL, CDOT, Local

New Terminal Automobile Parking 

Improvements

• Cost: $3,750,000

• Funding Sources: FAA BIL

GA Taxilane Rehabilitation Construction

• Cost: $600,000

• Funding Sources: Local

Taxiway B&D Rehabilitation

Cost: $1,027,776

• Funding Sources: FAA AIP, CDOT, Local

2024 ACIP Projects

11

1

2

3

4

68



2025
Runway 15-33 Widening Construction

• Cost: $14,021,639

• Funding Sources: FAA AIP, CDOT, Local

GA Hangar Site Development

• Cost: $1,137,679

• Funding Sources: FAA AIP, FAA BIL, 

CDOT, Local

New Fuel Farm Environmental & Design

• Cost: $250,000

• Funding Sources: CDOT, Local

2025 ACIP Projects

12

1

2

3

69



2026

Taxiway A Rehab, Lighting, & Signage Design

• Cost: $216,666

• Funding Sources: FAA AIP, CDOT, Local

SRE Building Pavement Expansion 

• Cost: $937,776

• Funding Sources: FAA BIL, CDOT, Local

New Fuel Farm Construction

• Cost: $800,000 

• Funding Sources: CDOT, Local

Taxiway D & A1 Realignment

• Cost: $1,167,833

• Funding Sources: FAA BIL, CDOT, Local

GA Apron & Taxiways Sealcoat & Restripe

• Cost: $500,000

• Funding Sources: CDOT, Local

2026 ACIP Projects

13

1

2

3

4

5

70



2027
Taxiway A Rehab, Lighting, & Signage Construction

• Cost: $1,871,210

• Funding Sources: FAA AIP, CDOT, Local

2027 ACIP Projects

14

1

71



2028

Construct Deice Pad for Commercial 

Ramp

• Cost: $1,321,000

• Funding Sources: FAA AIP, CDOT Local

Remove T-hangars & Construct Business 

Facilities

• Cost: $5,500,00

• Funding Sources: Local

2028 ACIP Projects

15

1

2

72



Recommendation & Next Steps

• Staff recommends adopt ion of the updated ACIP
• Staff will request project funding from FAA & State resources

• Recent ly passed Federal Infrastructure Bill will be providing addit ional 
funding opportunit ies for project funding:
• 5- year program ~$20 Billion, or an addit ional $4 Billion each year (just over twice 

the typical FAA AIP amounts)

• Obtained the needed 10,000 enplanements in 2022 unlocking an est imated $2 
million in 2024

• ACIP is due to be uploaded into the CDOT systems by October 31

16
73



Funding Source State Other

Financial Resource Program
 FAA 

Entitlement 

 FAA 

Discretionary 
 Cares Act 

 BIL Airport 

Improvement 

Grants 

 BIL Airport 

Terminals  

Program 

 Colorado 

Division of 

Aeronautics 

 Grant Match 
 Additional 

Funding 

Funding Programming Method

 Formulary 

$150K - $1M   

<10K - >10K 

Enplanements 

 Discretionary  Formulary  Formulary  Discretionary 

 Formulary for 

FAA Grant 

Matches & 

Remainder 

Discretionary 

 Formulary  Discretionary 

Grant Match Requirement 90/10 90/10 N/A 90/10 95/5 80/20 N/A N/A N/A

Current Year 2023

New Terminal (Construction - AIP 039, 041, 044) 16,373,136$      4,000,000$      A1/A2/A6 20,373,136$                 

Runway 15-33 Widening (Design - BIL 22 & 23) - includes COR No. 1 327,950$         468,219$           68,220$           A11 864,389$                      

GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation (Design) 100,000$         100,000$                      

Totals 2023 16,373,136$      327,950$         468,219$           68,220$           4,100,000$      21,337,525$                 

PFC Revenues

Funding Balance Reminaing 150,000$         811,050$         

2024

New Terminal (Construction - BIL 24) 1,590,000$      88,333$             88,333$           A6 1,766,666$                   

New Terminal Automobile Parking Improvements 3,750,000$       B6 3,750,000$                   

GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation (Construction) 600,000$         A4 600,000$                      

Taxiway B & D Rehabilitation (Environmental, Design, Construction) 925,000$         51,388$             51,388$           A8/B5 1,027,776$                   

Totals 2024 925,000$         1,590,000$      3,750,000$       139,721$           139,721$         600,000$         7,144,442$                   

PFC Revenues

Funding Balance Reminaing 225,000$         811,050$         

2025

Runway 15-33 Widening (Construction - Ent & Disc) 150,000$         12,469,475$      250,000$           1,152,164$      A13 14,021,639$                 

GA Hangar Site Development (Environmental, Design, and Construction - BIL 23) 225,000$         604,000$         31,945$             31,945$           244,789$         B3 1,137,679$                   

New Fuel Farm Site (Environmental and Design) 125,000$           125,000$         B1 250,000$                      

Totals 2025 375,000$         12,469,475$      604,000$         406,945$           1,309,109$      244,789$         15,409,318$                 

PFC Revenues

Funding Balance Reminaing -$                  1,051,050$      

2026

Taxiway A Rehab, Lighting & Signage (Design) 150,000$         33,333$             33,333$           A11 216,666$                      

SRE Pavement Expansion (Environmental, Design & Construct - BIL 25) 844,000$         46,888$             46,888$           N/A 937,776$                      

New Fuel Farm Site (Construction) 400,000$           400,000$         B1 800,000$                      

Taxiway D & A1 Realignment  (Environmental, Design, and Construction - BIL 23 & 26) 1,051,050$      58,391$             58,392$           A8 1,167,833$                   

GA Apron & Taxiways Sealcoat and Restripe 400,000$           100,000$         A10 500,000$                      

Totals 2026 150,000$         1,895,050$      938,612$           638,613$         -$                  3,622,275$                   

PFC Revenues

Funding Balance Reminaing -$                  

2027

Taxiway A Rehab, Lighting & Signage (Construction) 1,000,000$      250,000$           621,210$         A13 1,871,210$                   

Totals 2027 1,000,000$      250,000$           621,210$         -$                  1,871,210$                   

PFC Revenues

Funding Balance Reminaing -$                  

2028

Construct Deice Pad for Commercial Ramp 1,000,000$      250,000$           71,000$           B7 1,321,000$                   

Remove T-hangars & Construct Business Facilities (C-Hangars) 5,500,000$      B13 5,500,000$                   

Totals 2028 1,000,000$      250,000$           71,000$           5,500,000$      6,821,000$                   

PFC Revenues

Funding Balance Reminaing -$                  

Totals 2024-2028 3,450,000$      12,469,475$      -$                    4,089,050$      3,750,000$       1,985,278$       2,779,653$      6,344,789$      34,868,245$                 

FAA Airport Imp. Program AIP FAA Managed Federal Special Funding Local

2024-2028 Proposed Airport Capital Improvement Plan

 Total Project Costs 

 Airport Master 

Plan Capital 

Project 

Description 

Reference 

74



RESOLUTION #R-09-2023 

  

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2024-2028 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

PLAN OF THE NORTHERN COLORADO REGIONAL AIRPORT 

 

 WHEREAS, the Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission (“Commission”) was 

established by the City of Loveland (“Loveland”) and the City of Fort Collins (“Fort Collins”) 

pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Municipal Airport dated January 22, 2015 (“2015 IGA”), 

to effectuate changes to the governance structure and pursue development of the Fort Collins-

Loveland Airport (now known as the Northern Colorado Regional Airport) as a regional airport. 

The IGA was amended in 2016 and 2019; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2015 IGA, as amended, the Cities granted certain authority 

to the Commission, including the authority to “develop budgets, establish capital and operations 

reserve policies and propose capital projects consistent with Approved Airport Budget;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) requires the Airport to prepare 

a five-year capital improvement plan on an annual basis; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Airport staff has prepared the 2024-2028 Capital Improvement Plan (“CIP”), 

attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” The CIP is based upon the Airport’s anticipated budget for such 

future years, subject to approval and appropriations by the two Cities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Commission has reviewed the CIP and desires to approve the CIP as the 

Airport’s required five-year capital improvement plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NORTHERN COLORADO 

REGIONAL AIRPORT COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1.  That the 2024-2028 Capital Improvement Plan, attached hereto as “Exhibit 

A,” is hereby approved, subject to annual appropriations by the City of Fort Collins and City of 

Loveland. 

 

Section 2. That this Resolution shall be effective as of the date and time of its adoption. 

 

 

 

ADOPTED this 19th day of October, 2023. 

  

 

     ____________________________________ 

      Don Overcash, Chair of the 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 

 

 

75



ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Secretary 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

76



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 7 

MEETING DATE: October 19, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Aaron Ehle, Airport Planning & Development Specialist 

 

TITLE 

Planning & Development Subcommittee Charter Update 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Make a motion to adopt the updated charter as presented. 

Make a motion to appoint Rick Turley as the FNL Pilot Association’s PDSC 

representative. 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Neutral 
 

SUMMARY 

The Planning & Development Subcommittee (PDSC) serves in an advisory role to the 

Airport Commission. The group consists of Airport staff, staff from both Cities, citizen 

members, and a representative of the FNL Pilots Association. 

 

At the July and August Airport Commission Meetings, changes to the PDSC charter 

were discussed. Based on feedback from those meetings and recommendations from 

the PDSC, the charter has been updated.  

 

James Hays, the former president of the FNL Pilots Association submitted his 

resignation from the PDSC on in September. The current president of the Pilots 

Association, Bill Snodgrass, has requested that Rick Turley be appointed to the PDSC. 
 

ATTACHMENT 

Updated PDSC Charter 

77



 

 
Northern Colorado Regional Airport 
Planning and Development Subcommittee 

Sub-committee Charter Amended 10/11/2023 

 
I. Purpose 

 

The Planning and Development Subcommittee (“PDSC”) was formed by the Northern Colorado Regional Airport 

Commission (“Airport Commission”) as a subcommittee pursuant to Section 12 of the Commission Bylaws to 

facilitate strategic planning for the Airport and its immediate surroundings. It includes the following major 

objectives: 

 

i. To support the development of an updated Strategic Plan and the 2020 Airport Master Plan; 

ii. to provide ongoing support and input on specific plans and proposals for the development of 

Airport land; and  

iii. to provide input on other business development efforts as appropriate. 

 

II. Authority and Limitations 

 

The PDSC serves only in an advisory role to the Airport Commission with respect to the objectives listed above 

and may provide recommendations to the Airport Commission as the PDSC deems appropriate or as requested 

by the Airport Commission. The PDSC has no authority to take any final action or to direct the expenditure of 

funds or resources. 

 

III. Membership 

 

Membership of the PDSC will consist of the following City of Loveland and City of Fort Collins representatives 

(“City Members”) and non-City representatives (“Citizen Members”). The Airport will select an Airport staff 

member to participate as staff liaison to the PDSC: 

 

City Members 

• Airport Director (PDSC Chair) 

• Representative from the City of Loveland Economic Development Department 

• Representative from the City of Fort Collins Department of Economic Health 

• Representative from the City of Loveland Current Planning Division 

 

Citizen Members 

• Representative of FNL Pilots Association 

• Tom Fleming, Former Airport Commission Vice-Chair 

• Diane Jones, The Formation Group 

 

Membership may change over time, subject to approval by the Airport Commission as described in this Charter. 

Other individuals may be asked to take part in the PDSC from time to time in an ad-hoc, advisory role as needed, 

but shall not have any authority vote on any matter being considered by the PDSC.  

 

78



Because of the breadth of the PDSC’s charter, it may be necessary or appropriate to form other subcommittees 

from time to time to address related topics. If directly related to the purpose of the PDSC, then the PDSC may 

form the subcommittee and advise the Commission. If the scope is unrelated to or exceeds the PDSC’s charter, 

then the PDSC will submit the proposal to the Commission for consideration and approval as appropriate. 

IV. Member Terms

The length of a Citizen Member’s term shall be four (4) years effective as of the date of Airport Commission’s 

approval of such Citizen Member’s appointment. For the Citizen Members listed in this Charter, the start date of 

their terms shall begin on the effective date of this Charter amendment. There shall be no term limits for either 

City Members or Citizen Members. 

V. Changes in Membership

Airport Commission approval by motion or resolution to amend this Charter with respect to membership shall be 

required for the following membership changes: 

- Removal of any City Member position or Citizen Member listed in this Charter;

- Addition of a City Member or Citizen Member to the PDSC membership; and

- Replacement of a Citizen Member who is removed or vacates their membership.

A new or replacement Citizen Member may be nominated and presented to the Airport Commission for 

consideration by any member of the PDSC or Airport Commissioner. The Airport Commission may, in its 

discretion, hold interviews by an interview committee of its choosing with no more than two Airport 

Commissioners. 

VI. Meetings

In accordance with the Airport Commission Bylaws, PDSC meetings shall be held in accordance with the Colorado 

Open Meetings Law. The PDSC shall meet monthly on the first Wednesday of each month beginning at 3:30PM at 

the Airport Conference Room. A majority of the members of the PDSC constitutes a quorum. PDSC members may 

attend meetings either in-person or virtually. 

VI. Duration

The duration of the PDSC will be determined by need for support on current and future Airport planning and 

development projects.  However, the Airport Commission, at its sole direction, may dissolve or alter the focus of 

the PDSC to best serve the Airport’s interests.  

79


	Agenda 10-18-2023N
	meeting Agenda

	Commission Packet 2023-10-18N
	Agenda 10-18-2023
	meeting Agenda

	Commission Minutes 9-21-2023
	SIgn in Sheet 09-21-23
	Airport Commission Meeting Item 2
	Preliminary Monthly Statement 09-30-2023
	Airport Monthly Statement New

	October Report 2023 combined 1
	October Report 2023 combined 1
	October Report 2023.pdf
	Report Highlights
	Airport Activity Dashboard
	Airport Owned T-Hangars Update
	Remote Tower
	Terminal
	Foundation work continues with installation of Grade beams to support the slab installation in November. Grade beams, concrete placement and formwork removal are complete on about half of the required installations. Under slab utility trenching is und...
	Snow and Ice Control Plan and Winter Operation Stakeholder meeting.
	Since the last commission meeting, FNL staff have conducted our Annual training on the Snow and Ice Control plan for the upcoming winter season. We also completed the 2023 Winter Operations stakeholder meeting to included outside entities in the safet...
	Airport Scheduled Events
	Attachments

	Runway 6-24 Pilot Communication.pdf

	FNL Remote Tower Pause Release 10-18-2023 FinalV2
	October Report 2023 combined 1
	Florine-free Foam.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Firefighting Foam.pdf
	Firefighting Foam 3.pdf
	Firefighting foam 2.pdf

	Binder2.pdf
	RT.pdf
	RT2.pdf
	RT3.pdf


	Customs Article

	Airport Commission Meeting Item 4
	Moser Extension Request 5235 Stearman
	Change Order 1 combined Draft
	FNL RWY 15-33 - PAPI Relocation_CRE Fees.pdf
	22042 Proposal PAPI Relocation
	22042 Northern CO Regional Airport RWY 15-22 Widening- CO Design Fees 

	Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) Design 10-10-2023.pdf
	Summary of Work
	Quality Standards
	Project Area
	Control Surveying
	Orthophoto Mapping
	18B Obstruction Surveys
	Production Schedule
	Deliverables
	Cost and Payment Terms
	Client Responsibilities
	NV5 Geospatial Representative


	Airport Commission Meeting Item 6
	CIP Presentation 2024-28
	Slide Number 1
	��Airport Capital Improvement Plan
	�Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP)�2021-2025
	Pandemic Impacts to Grant Funding
	FAA NPIAS
	NPIAS Federal Funding �Development Estimate 2024-2028
	Proposed 2024-2028 ACIP Highlights
	Airport Capital Improvement Plan Summary (2024-2028)
	2024-2028 ACIP Detail
	2023 ACIP Projects
	2024 ACIP Projects
	2025 ACIP Projects
	2026 ACIP Projects
	2027 ACIP Projects
	2028 ACIP Projects
	Recommendation & Next Steps

	Copy of FNL CIP 2024-2028 10.17.23
	Sheet1

	R-09-2023_Approve CIP
	Airport Commission Meeting Item 7
	PDSC Charter 2023 Updates Clean
	Northern Colorado Regional Airport
	Planning and Development Subcommittee



